Council, Monday, 18th January, 2016
SUMMONS AND AGENDA

Civic Offices
St Nicholas Way
Sutton
Surrey
SM1 1EA
Date 8 January 2016
To:

All Councillors of the London Borough of Sutton

Dear Councillor,
You are hereby summoned to attend a Meeting of the COUNCIL of the LONDON
BOROUGH OF SUTTON to be held in the EUROPA GALLERY, CENTRAL LIBRARY,
SUTTON on Monday, 18th January, 2016 at 7.00 pm for the transaction of the
business stated on the agenda below.
Yours sincerely

pp.
Chief Executive

AGENDA
1.

MINUTES (Pages 1 - 40)
To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 2 November
2015.
Appendix D - Questions: Standing Order 8.13 to follow

2.

MAYOR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

3.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Councillors to declare any personal or prejudicial interests that they have on
matters to be discussed at this evening’s Council meeting.

4.

ANSWERS TO QUESTIONS

a)

Questions from Members of the Public

b)

Questions from Councillors

1

Council, Monday, 18th January, 2016
SUMMONS AND AGENDA

5.

PETITIONS
To receive any petitions which will either be dealt with at this Council meeting
or stand referred for consideration by appropriate Committees of the Council.

6.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS AND NOTICES OF MOTION
To receive and consider the following notices of motion and recommendations
of Committees.

a)

Motion - Impact of central government cuts on local communities (Pages
41 - 42)

b)

Standards Committee Complaints Procedure (Pages 43 - 44)

c)

Treasury Management Quarterly report Quarter 2 (Pages 45 - 46)

d)

Local Committee membership
Beddington & Wallington Local Committee
To appoint Glenise Coxon as representative for the Onslow Gardens
Residents’ Association on the Beddington and Wallington Local Committee.
St Helier, The Wrythe and Wandle Valley Local Committee
To appoint Tony Mayne as representative for Denmark Gardens Residents’
Association (Mr R Watson – substitute).
Cheam North and Worcester Park Local Committee
To appoint Simon Densley to represent Worcester Park Resident’s
Association, and
Appoint Graham Jarvis to represent Friends of Daisyfield on the Cheam North
and Worcester Park Local Committee.

7.

REQUISITION - SCHOOL PLACES UPDATE (Pages 47 - 52)
To consider the requisition.

Page 1

Agenda Item 1
Council
2 November 2015

LONDON BOROUGH OF SUTTON
MINUTES
of the meeting of the Council
held on 2 November 2015
starting at 7.00 pm
Members
The Worshipful the Mayor
(Muhammad Sadiq)
The Deputy Mayor
(Joyce Melican)
Councillors:
Manuel Abellan
Pathumal Ali
David Bartolucci
Samantha Bourne
Richard Broadbent
Kevin Burke
Mary Burstow
Moira Butt
Richard Clifton
Steve Cook
Margaret Court
Jean Crossby
Tim Crowley
Adrian Davey
Ruth Dombey
Vincent Galligan
Neil Garratt

ABSENT

Martin Gonzalez
Sunita Gordon
Marlene Heron
David Hicks
Arthur Hookway
Doug Hunt
Edward Joyce
Richard Marston
Wendy Mathys
Nick Mattey
Jayne McCoy
Patrick McManus
Callum Morton
Jane Pascoe
Nali Patel

Steve Penneck
Nighat Piracha
Hamish Pollock
Marian Radford
Holly Ramsey
Jason Reynolds
Alan Salter
Daniel Sangster
Tony Shields
Colin Stears
Simon Wales
Jill Whitehead
Graham Whitham
Paul Wingfield
Hanna Zuchowska

Councillors.Nick Emmerson, Amy Haldane, Miguel Javelot and
Ali Mirhashem
PART ‘A’

22.

MINUTES

The minutes of the ordinary meeting held on 13 July 2015 and the extraordinary
meeting held on 28 September 2015 were agreed as a correct record and signed by
the Mayor.

1

Agenda Item 1

Page 2

Council
2 November 2015
23.

MAYOR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS
a) Apologies for absence
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Nick Emmerson, Amy
Haldane, Ali Mirhashem and Miguel Javelot.
b) Announcements
The Mayor announced the sad news that former Councillor Joan McMullen
died on 17th October at a Brighton nursing home. Joan served on the Council
between 2002 - 2006 representing Wallington North Ward. The meeting
observed a minute silence.
The Mayor made the following announcements:
More local businesses were signing up to the Council’s innovative Embracing
Mental Health Project. Since its launch earlier this year the project has had a
73 per cent success rate on placement into paid work for local residents who
in some cases were unable to gain employment after years of trying.
The Council had set up a Sutton Apprenticeship Hub website to connect
young people looking for a new career with businesses that offer
apprenticeship places and on-the-job learning.
The Mayor congratulated the Council’s Trading Standards team who last
month secured a 42-month jail sentence for a self-employed landscape
gardener who pleaded guilty to a series of frauds and grossly overcharging
elderly and vulnerable people for his gardening work in Sutton and across
Surrey.
Sutton once again performed well in the annual London in Bloom awards, with
five council-maintained parks picking up awards. Beddington Park, Cheam
Park & Rec and The Grove Park all secured Silver Gilt awards in their Park of
the Year categories. Oaks Park secured a Silver Award, while Manor Park
achieved a Silver Gilt award for the third consecutive year.
The Mayor corrected an announcement made at the July meeting where he
stated thousands of borough households had signed up for the garden waste
collection service, which replaced the free collection. It should have been
described as a discretionary collection, not a free one.
The Mayor invited Mandy Jenkins, from the Sutton Poppy Appeal to address
the meeting about the appeal.

The Mayor reminded Members of their responsibilities in participating in
Council debates and that the Council did not enjoy absolute privilege for
example, applies to proceedings in Parliament. Only qualified privilege applies
to statements made in Council meetings.
2

Page 3

Agenda Item 1
Council
2 November 2015

The Mayor invited the Leader of the Council to make a statement regarding
the preference of the Council for a secondary school to be located on the
former Sutton Hospital site.

24.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.
25.

ANSWERS TO QUESTIONS

(a)

Questions from Members of the Public

Three members of the public asked six questions, the supplementary questions and
responses are set out at Appendix A to the minutes. The time allocated for public
questions concluded prior to all responses being given. The Mayor advised that
answers to question not reached would be circulated as soon as possible.
(b)

Questions from Councillors

Five members asked five questions the supplementary questions and responses are
set out at Appendix B to the minutes. The time allocated for member questions
concluded prior to all responses being given. The Mayor advised that answers to
question not reached would be circulated as soon as possible.
26.

PETITIONS

Councillors Ramsey, McCoy and Butt presented separate petitions on behalf of
residents. The Chief Executive summarised that: the petition presented by Cllr
Ramsey requested that the Council desist from leasing or selling the stable block in
Cheam Park and asked that residents are engaged in deciding the future use of the
stable block and buildings nearby so would be referred to the Strategy and
Resources Committee to consider; the petition presented by Cllr McCoy requested
that the Council looks at sites for homes to be used to house ex-servicemen and
women so would be referred to the Housing, Economy and Business Committee to
consider and the petition presented by Cllr Butt requested that the Council protect
the mobile library service in Sutton and so would be referred to the Environment and
Neighbourhood Committee.
27.

REQUISITION

In accordance with Rules of Procedure (23.4) Councillor Simon Wales, Vice Chair of
the Strategy and Resources Committee moved the adoption of the draft resolution
35. The Lodge – Head of Terms Transfer to EcoLocal, considered by the Strategy
and Resources Committee held on 28 September 2015.
Two members asked two questions on the debate the supplementary questions and
responses are attached at Appendix C to these minutes.

3

Agenda Item 1

Page 4

Council
2 November 2015
Following debate the minute was put to the vote, in accordance with Rules of
Procedure (15.2) a recorded vote was requested the result of which was as follows:
In favour of the adoption of the minute (38)
Manuel Abellan, Pathumal Ali, David Bartolucci, Samantha Bourne, Richard
Broadbent, Kevin Burke, Mary Burstow, Richard Clifton, Steve Cook, Margaret
Court, Jean Crossby, Adrian Davey, Ruth Dombey, Vincent Galligan, Martin
Gonzalez, Sunita Gordon, Marlene Heron, Arthur Hookway, Doug Hunt, Edward
Joyce, Richard Marston, Wendy Mathys, Jayne McCoy, Joyce Melican, Callum
Morton, Steve Penneck, Nighat Piracha, Hamish Pollock, Marian Radford, Jason
Reynolds, Alan Salter, Daniel Sangster, Colin Stears, Simon Wales, Jill Whitehead,
Graham Whitham, Paul Wingfield, Hanna Zuchowska.
Against the adoption of the minute (9)
Moira Butt, Tim Crowley, Neil Garratt, David hicks, Nick Mattey, Patrick McManus,
Jane Pascoe, Holly Ramsey, Tony Shields.
Abstentions (1)
Muhammad Sadiq
The minute was carried
Resolved
1. That Ecolocal is granted a 125-year lease for a mixed-use redevelopment of
the Lodge building, Carshalton.
2. That the Council use its power under Circular 06/03: Local Government Act
1972 – General Disposals Consent 2003, to accept the offer of a lease
premium totalling £600,000 which is less than best consideration, on the basis
that the disposal helps in securing economic, social and environmental wellbeing of the community.
3. That the Strategic Director for Resources be authorised to complete
negotiations with Ecolocal for the lease as set out in the Heads of Terms in
this report and direct the Head of Shared Legal Services to draw up the
necessary legal documentation for the development works to the building and
to exchange and complete on the lease.

28.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS AND NOTICES OF MOTION

(a)

Gambling Policy Review

Councillor Mary Burstow, Chair of the Licensing Committee, formally moved the
minute which was put to the vote and carried.

4

Page 5

Agenda Item 1
Council
2 November 2015

Resolved
That the amended statement of principles, as set out at Appendix A of the report, be
adopted.
(b)

Governance Review

Councillor Ruth Dombey, Chair of the Strategy and Resources Committee, formally
moved the adoption of the minute which was put to the vote and carried.
Resolved
1. That the amended article 7 (Committees) of the constitution attached at
Appendix A be agreed noting the principles of thresholds of decisions
reserved to standing committees.
2. That the revised Section 3, Responsibility for Functions Part 3 attached at
Appendix B, be agreed.
3. That it be noted that urgency procedures will be used to cover interim
delegations required as part of shared services as set out at paragraph 4.7.
4. That the amended article 6 (Scrutiny Committees) of the constitution attached
at Appendix C, be agreed.
5. That the amended Section 4 Part 4C (Procedures for dealing with matters at
Scrutiny Committee) attached at Appendix D, be agreed.
6. That the amendments to the Budget and Policy Framework (para 27 of
Section 4 - Rules of Procedure, Part 4 - Procedures for Dealing with Matters
at Committee of the Constitution) as set out at paragraph 4.6 be agreed.
7. That authority be delegated to the Monitoring Officer to make any
consequential amendments to the Constitution arising from the report.

(c)

Amendments to the Contract Standing Orders

Councillor Ruth Dombey, Chair of the Strategy and Resources Committee, formally
moved the adoption of the minute which was put to the vote and carried.
Resolved
The amendments to Contract Standing Orders (CSO) be agreed including:
● The increase in the contract value threshold of £150,000, up to which an
exemption from tendering may be sought, to that of the application at
which the EU regulations for non-Schedule 3 services apply, i.e. from
5

Page 6

Agenda Item 1
Council
2 November 2015

£150,000 to £172,514 (the value of which is subject to change every 2
years as published by the European Commission)
● The inclusion of the Commissioning Board as an advisory forum to
officers on the correct application of the Council’s commissioning cycle,
before contracts are tendered and contracts are awarded. It will apply
when the value of a contract is £172,514 or above.
● Other general changes to accommodate the new regulations and to take
account of organisational changes since the existing CSO’s were last
published.
29.

LOCAL COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP

Resolved
Carshalton & Clockhouse Local Committee
That Mr Stephen Quayle be appointed as a substitute representative for the
Neighbourhood Watch on the Carshalton and Clockhouse Local Committee.
Beddington & Wallington Local Committee
To Charlotte Watson (substitute Laura Kilty) be appointed as representative for the
Alcester Court Residents’ Association on the Beddington and Wallington Local
Committee.

The meeting ended at 9.32 pm
Mayor:
Date:

6

Page 7

Agenda Item 1

Appendix A to Council:
Public Questions
2 November 2015
London Borough of Sutton
Council: 2 November 2015
Questions under Standing Order 8.7
From Members of the Public

1.
Question asked by Mr Bill Dunster, Zedfactory, 22 Sandmartin Way,
Hackbridge to Councillor Wendy Mathys, Chair of the Children, Family and
Education Committee
Could Sutton Council clarify why the Felnex development has a very expensive
district heating scheme [powered by the incinerator] planned but this important new
site has been unable to support the usual policy number of affordable homes, and
why a relatively lower cost extension to Hackbridge primary school has been
overlooked in favour of spending £7.5 to 10 million pounds on a new primary
school on Metropolitan Open Land previously allocated as an ecology park?
Reply by Councillor Jayne McCoy, Chair of the Housing, Economy and
Business Committee
Thank you Mr Mayor, and thank you Mr Dunster for your question.
I’m afraid you’ve been somewhat ill-informed. For a start the linking up to the
planned district heating system is expected actually to bring cost savings to the
developer as well as lowering their carbon footprint so that would account for the
developers keenness to do so. We haven’t overlooked a lower cost extension to
Hackbridge Primary School, it was looked into extending on the site and it proved
to be unviable, which is why an extension is proposed on a second campus and
there’s never been any allocation of the Metropolitan Open Land (MOL) as an
ecology park. Thank you.
Supplementary Question asked by Bill Dunster
Could you please explain how the Felnex development can proceed with a district
heating scheme when the incinerator will be many years away from completion?
Secondly, it’s extremely easy to design the Felnex development around the
adjacent primary school, ensuring privacy and duplication of existing resources
there is an enormous cost allocated to completely duplicating all the facilities again
approximately half a mile away.
And thirdly, the MOL was once designated by Sutton Council as an ecology park.
There are whole policy documents relating to this and it formed the basis of a large
application to the millennium commission many years ago and to my knowledge
the designation has never been withdrawn.
Reply by Councillor McCoy
It’s three supplementaries but I will deal with them because it should be quite short.
The energy from waste facility is due to be completed in 2018, in the meantime,
the decentralised energy network can be run off the landfill gas engines. The
school, actually there was a conversation with the developers of the Felnex site to

Agenda Item 1

Page 8
Appendix A to Council:
Public Questions
2 November 2015

see if a school could be provided on the site and it just wasn’t viable, they weren’t
prepared to do it, it wasn’t viable, we can’t force them to do that, so it was looked
at. And regarding having two campuses I appreciate it might be more cost efficient
perhaps to provide it on the site but if there’s no room on the site is has to provide
it somewhere else and we have done the same thing with the Bandon Hill school,
we’ve got two campuses which are working very well. So it has been done before
in the borough. And as for the site designation, in our site development policies it’s
MOL is the designation. I know that there was some interest in trying to make it
into an ecology park but that’s not the same as designation in planning policies but
I can always check that. But we wouldn’t be proposing to do anything against what
it’s designated for if we couldn’t. Thank you.
Supplementary Question asked by Councillor Nick Mattey
Councillor McCoy has said that the scheme is not expensive and it represents
value for money. Well, I think that charging people 14p per kilowatt hour when gas
is available from 3.5-4p per kilowatt hour is excessively expensive and also the fact
that the, it’s my understanding. My question is, is how can Councillor McCoy say
that it represents value for money to the tenants, I mean to me the tenants are just
going to be ripped off. Thank you.
Reply by Councillor McCoy
Thank you Mr Mattey, I know you’ve raised this a number of times and whatever
we say you don't believe us but I will repeat it again for the benefit of the chamber.
As the price is currently under negotiation no price has actually been agreed so
any comments about what the price is actually going to be is actually pure
speculation because it hasn’t been agreed yet. So we can’t say that we’re
overcharging if the price hasn’t been agreed. Secondly, the articles for the
decentralised energy network specifically state that the heat price charge will aim
to offer parity or where possible a saving against any alternative heat supply. It’s
known as the avoided cost methodology and it’s seen as industry best practice
because it drives efficiency in any energy generation and distribution systems. And
finally, no developer is going to sign up to a deal that is going to make it
uncompetitive.

2.
Question asked by Mr Bill Dunster, Zedfactory, 22 Sandmartin Way,
Hackbridge to Councillor Jayne McCoy, Chair of the Housing, Economy and
Business Committee
How can distributing heat from incinerators possibly make sense when electric
generating efficiency is reduced by around 25 % , the surrounding existing streets
are all low density making distribution uneconomic and new developments have
increased mandatory energy efficiency targets that almost eliminate the need for
space heating ?

Page 9

Agenda Item 1

Appendix A to Council:
Public Questions
2 November 2015
Reply by Councillor Jayne McCoy, Chair of the Housing, Economy and
Business Committee
Thank you again Mr Dunster. And again, you seem to be misinformed because the
electricity output from the source will not be reduced. Only the waste heat energy
that would be rejected and not used for electricity generation will be used by the
decentralised energy network. The reduced heat requirements of modern buildings
was factored into the business model which is a very robust business model. But
there will always be a need for some heating, it’s never going to be zero. But also,
the decentralised energy network intends to distribute hot water for domestic use,
and I think everyone will agree that there’s always going to be a need for hot water.
Thank you.
Supplementary Question asked by Bill Dunster
Well this must be the first incinerator in the UK that’s been constructed that doesn’t
have a reduction in the electrical generation efficiency when district heating’s been
added. So this is wonderful news and great innovation on the part of Sutton
Council but I somehow doubt it. So if you could check your facts on that? And have
you published your business plan because I haven’t seen it, I don't believe it’s
available for anyone to make any judgements. And surely you’ve based very
serious planning policy objectives around the viability of a plan that has not been
published.
Reply by Councillor McCoy
Thank you. Well, I mean the proof is in the pudding. We have negotiated to only
take the electricity source that is going to be waste so, if we’re the only people that
are doing it then that’s fantastic and I'm not surprised that Sutton’s leading the
way. Regarding the business model, there are commercial sensitivities in the
business plan so not all of it will have been published in its entirety but obviously
the members making the decision would have seen the business plan. There is a
business plan, and the decision was based on that. Thank you.
Supplementary Question asked by Councillor Neil Garratt
I promise I do have a question and it’s short. When people move into Felnex or any
other development that is covered by the energy network, will they have a choice
of energy supplier or will they be forced to take their heat via the council’s district
heating scheme, whatever the price?
Reply by Councillor McCoy
As with any centralised heating system in any of these developments which are
quite common now, they will be tied into that supply. But obviously as I said before
no developer is going to sign up to a scheme that’s not going to be commercially
competitive for their tenants. And in our statement we’ve said that it’s going to be
competitive. Thank you.

Agenda Item 1

Page 10
Appendix A to Council:
Public Questions
2 November 2015

5.
Question asked by Mr Alan Trickey, 9 Chiltern Road, Sutton to
Councillor Ruth Dombey, Chair of Strategy and Resources Committee
Why did the Council commit to buying the land at the Sutton Hospital site before
knowing whether or not it was suitable for a school (despite it being pretty obvious
to most observers that it was totally unsuitable) and yet without a clear plan B if
the school were not to go ahead? Why on earth did the Council not secure a six
month option to acquire the land pending completion of the feasibility study thereby
saving it £8 million of our money? In a plc of similar size to Sutton Council, the
CEO would have been fired for such crass incompetence, potentially losing £8
million of our money. Should not this apply to the leader of Sutton Council?

Reply by Councillor Ruth Dombey, Chair of Strategy and Resources
Committee
Good evening Mr Trickey. The answer to your question, locating a school at the
Sutton Hospital site had always been a key part of the Council’s proposals for
developing the hospital site as a Life Sciences Cluster. And this was reported and
agreed by Members on the Housing, Environment and Business Committee as
early as 1st July 2014.
With the Council’s pupil’s place planning showing that a new secondary school
was required to open in the borough, it was a perfectly logical decision for the
Council to acquire the plot at the Sutton Hospital site declared surplus by the
Epsom & St Helier University Hospitals Trust (ESTUH). The choice of the Council
acquiring an option, as you suggest, instead of outright purchase was not open to
the Council as the Council could only have been identified as a Priority Purchaser
for the site if it was prepared to purchase the site outright. If acquiring an option
had been the offer from the Council, the hospital trust would have been obligated
to put the site out for sale on the open market.
As it stands, the school site remains one of a few potential sites in the borough on
which a new secondary school could be built, and you’ll have heard my statement,
making it clear that it remains the Council’s intention for a new secondary school to
be built at the Sutton Hospital site that would fit with the emerging master plan for
the whole site.
In the extremely unlikely event of a new secondary school not being built on the
site, you’ll be pleased to hear we do have a plan B. The Council’s options for the
land it has purchased remain as set out in the report considered by the Strategy &
Resources committee on the 3rd December 2014 when the decision was taken to
authorise officers to conclude negotiations to acquire the site. These are that the
site could be used as part of the wider proposals for the London cancer hub that
would still have a commercial and residential value that would be beneficial to the
Council.

Page 11

Agenda Item 1

Appendix A to Council:
Public Questions
2 November 2015
I can reassure Mr Trickey that the council has spent this money wisely. We have a
plan B, we actually also have a plan C. In the extremely unlikely event of the
school not being built and the equally unlikely event of the London cancer hub not
proceeding, you’ll be delighted to know that the land can be used to build the
affordable and social housing that this borough so desperately needs.
Supplementary Question asked by Alan Trickey
My calculations and some of my colleagues is that the value of the site is more
near to £4 million than £8 million. Therefore, if it had gone on the open market the
council would have been able to purchase the land for still a lesser amount. The
topography of the site, the trees on the site and the famous bat roost will make any
development a bit difficult. So does Councillor Dombey not realise, does she not
feel that the council committed itself to spending rather more money than was
necessary on it?
Reply by Councillor Dombey
No I don't Mr Trickey. As far as the value of the site is concerned I’ll make sure that
our land valuers send you a detailed answer so you can understand why we got
the proper price for the site. I can also reassure you on the bats. I'm told that the
impact on bats has been considered as part of the prior approval demolition
application. The applicant submitted results of an initial bat emergence survey,
who knows such things existed? And a bat presence likely absence survey, again
I'm learning, to support the application. The application identified that some
buildings may indicate the presence of bats. The submitted phase one habitat and
scoping bat survey, this is a new world for me, recommended that further survey
works be carried out. A further bat survey was submitted which identified that a
total of three bats were recorded emerging from Cheviot House and that there’s
likely, possibly a bat roost in the house. A number of mitigation measures are
proposed which include the provision of bat boxes. The council’s biodiversity
officer concluded that the roost is likely to be small, probably utilised on a
temporary basis at the start and end of the season. The biodiversity officer raised
no objection to the proposal and considers that the applicant should be able to
secure a licence based on the surveys undertaken and mitigation proposed.
Therefore, the council’s statutory duty regarding this protected species is met. No
objection was raised on this basis, subject to a condition to ensure that the
applicant demonstrates that a licence has been granted by Natural England prior to
the demolition of Cheviot House, and that the mitigation measures are
implemented in accordance with the details submitted. If this sounds complicated, I
can only agree with you and I would suggest that you lobby the minister
responsible for planning to remove some of this bureaucracy. In short there are
three bats, and there is no problem.
Supplementary Question asked by Councillor David Hicks
I noted Councillor Dombey’s statement about the school and the innovative
approach to development which is very welcome. I hope the innovation won’t
stretch as far as putting 1,250 pupils per hectare on the site and will take a more

Agenda Item 1

Page 12
Appendix A to Council:
Public Questions
2 November 2015

reasonable approach to the use of the school land and the residents around it. Will
that be the case?
Reply by Councillor Dombey
Of course we will ensure that the residents that live in the local area will have every
opportunity to have their say but as Councillor Hicks knows very well, it’s not like
five years ago or so when the council could actually make a decision about the site
and the size of the school. So the people, the organisations who are interested in
sponsoring this school will be discussing with the education funding agency the
appropriate size for the school. We are confident that that will happen.

6.
Question asked by Mr Alan Trickey, 9 Chiltern Road, Sutton to
Councillor Ruth Dombey, Chair of Strategy and Resources Committee
Can we, the residents, have a health centre on the Sutton Hospital site as since
the closure of Sutton Hospital, such facilities are non-existent in this part of the
borough?
Reply by Councillor Ruth Dombey, Chair of Strategy and Resources
Committee
Thank you Mr Trickey. Again, the answer is going to be technical, but in a nutshell
I’m afraid the council has no powers to ensure if a health centre can be built on the
Sutton Hospital site.
I’m surprised your local ward councillors haven’t explained the complicated world
of the NHS to you in more detail. The Department of Health transferred the
responsibility for the commissioning of healthcare services to groups of GPs,
known as "clinical commissioning groups" and NHS England. It’s therefore the
Sutton CCG and NHS England South West London who will assess whether a new
health centre is required on the Sutton Hospital site. You should be lobbying them,
not us.
Sutton CCG under the co-commissioning agreement from NHS England from April
this year has the remit to comment on and support any applications for premises
developments in the Borough of Sutton. There are currently no plans for a primary
care health facility on the Sutton Hospital site. Sutton CCG are working, we are
told, with NHS England to develop a high level Sutton Estates Strategy for
primary, community and out of hospital services for the next five years. So for any
further enquiries please do contact Sutton CCG and I can provide their details if
you need them.
Supplementary Question asked by Councillor David Hicks
Thank you for the answer to the question. I had an email from Councillor Brendan
Hudson today about the health centre and, ex-councillor, sorry, I miss old friends,
ex-Councillor Hudson has explained that the NHS hasn’t made its mind up about

Page 13

Agenda Item 1

Appendix A to Council:
Public Questions
2 November 2015
the Henderson Hospital site yet and there is still, as far as I'm concerned the
opportunity of it being placed somewhere else.
If that were possible, would Councillor Dombey and the members opposite support
that centre being located in an alternative location?
Reply by Councillor Dombey
Councillor Hicks, are you talking about the proposed medical centre on the ex
Henderson Hospital site? I’ll repeat what I said before to Mr Trickey, it is not in our
gift.
Supplementary Question asked by Councillor David Hicks
No, the question was would you support it, not would you action it?
Reply by Councillor Dombey
Without knowing more of the detail, if you’re saying would I support enhanced
health facilities in the south of the borough, of course I would but I’d like to see the
detail.

7.
Question asked by Bill Main-Ian, 29 The Warren, Carshalton Beeches,
to Councillor Ruth Dombey, Chair of Strategy and Resources Committee
What is the council going to do to stop companies like Viridor who have given
£100,000 to Sutton Council to “help” the council’s energy supply business carry out
research and other contractors such as Smith & Byford among others who donate
money to Sutton Liberal Democrats and carry out work for Sutton Council
influencing the council in the award of contracts?

Reply by Councillor Ruth Dombey, Chair of Strategy and Resources
Committee
Thank you, good evening. Viridor has not given £100,000 to Sutton Council. The
legal agreement associated with the approved ERF facility at Beddington
Farmlands included a sum of £100,000 to be used by the Combined Heat and
Power (CHP) Working Group to support its activities and initiatives. The Working
Group is to be established by Viridor which will undertake feasibility reviews
including the identification of opportunities for CHP and district heating arising from
the development and which will address matters including the technical, economic
and commercial feasibility of CHP.
The contractor mentioned was awarded a contract by Sutton Housing Partnership,
not Sutton Council, in 2008. The donation from this company took place in 2014,
many years after the award of any of the contracts that exist. There is no evidence
of any improper influence on the award of these contracts by the Council.
Mr Main-Ian, I’m sure you realise as an ex-policeman that you are making very
serious allegations. In the Electoral Commission information, there are no

Agenda Item 1

Page 14
Appendix A to Council:
Public Questions
2 November 2015

donations from these companies to the Sutton Liberal Democrats at or anywhere
near the point at which they were successful in gaining contacts with the Council.
Given the size and length of the contracts they would have required a member
decision at some point in the procurement process, but these contracts began in
2008, 2009 and 2011, up to six years earlier than the donations made in 2014.
The council's contract standing orders have a Corrupt Practices provision. I’m told
it’s paragraph 51.16 of the contract Standing Orders. That enables the council to
declare null and void any contract where it is shown that there have been attempts
to give gifts or inducements to secure the award of contracts. I do not believe that
a donation made six years after the contract award seems very likely to be classed
as such.
The member code of conduct and register of interests apply to members' individual
interests not to their party. It is a disclosable pecuniary interest if anyone makes a
contribution to members' personal election costs but these donations were to
Sutton Liberal Democrats as a party not to individual councillors. At the time when
decisions would have come to committee those donations had not yet been made
to the party and so there was no interest of any kind for those members to declare.
Supplementary Question asked by Bill Main-Ian
As an ex-police officer if questions don't get asked by police officers and
compliance officers, how do you expect to get an answer to the question? So then
it relies upon people like myself that are looking at council websites and other
websites to find out the information. We can only pose the questions councillor.
What is patently obvious to me in this process through my investigations is that
there is an absolute huge gap in the council constitution and the perception of
corruption is as bad as actual corruption itself. If I had the evidence obviously the
police would investigate but failing the police investigating anything then we’re
reliant of questions being asked of councillors. So my question is, will the council
review the constitution so that the perception of corrupt donations to political
parties actually protect the contractors as well as the political parties and the
councillors themselves.
Reply by Councillor Ruth Dombey
I think I can only reply by repeating the words that you used. If you had the
evidence, obviously the police would investigate. You do not have the evidence,
there is no investigation. If you produce the evidence, there will be an investigation.
Supplementary Question asked by Bill Main-Ian
Sorry, my question was about reviewing the constitution of the council to get rid of
this perception of corruption.

Page 15

Agenda Item 1

Appendix A to Council:
Public Questions
2 November 2015
Reply by Councillor Ruth Dombey
And I will take that question. If you believe that there are clauses in the constitution
which could be improved I’d be glad to hear from you.
Supplementary Question asked by Councillor Neil Garratt
I agree the issues raised by Mr Main-Ian are serious and obviously I read through
his very long and slightly confusing email that I'm sure we all received. I think the
point is that it’s important not just to be clean, but to be seen to be clean, and so to
that end I wonder if a political donation did come into the local Sutton Liberal
Democrats from a company that was involved in contract negotiations, would they
accept that donation or refuse it on the basis of wanting to be seen to be very
clean and not influenced?
Reply by Councillor Ruth Dombey
So you’re asking if we are in full election campaign and there is a donation from a
local company, could you repeat the question then?
Supplementary Question asked by Councillor Neil Garratt
If, not during an election period because obviously donations are declarable at any
point, above a certain level. So if there is a company which is negotiating for a
contact with this council, if they make a donation to the Sutton Liberal Democrats,
or they offer a donation during that period, let’s say a company that had no
particular history previously of donating money to the Sutton Liberal Democrats,
would that donation be accepted or refused?
Reply by Councillor Ruth Dombey
I think actually this is a question for the monitoring officer.
Reply by the Monitoring Officer, Jessica Crowe
Matters of donations to political parties are regulated by the Electoral Commission
and so the council cannot comment on what donations go in to the party, and are
reported to the Electoral Commission and that is a matter for the party and the
Commission. There are obligations on companies to declare that they have
complied with the Council’s provisions around the award of contracts and I guess it
would be a matter for members whether they knew of the donations and
considered them to have played a role in affecting their judgement of what’s in the
public interest and that matter of deciding on what’s in the public interest is an
individual responsibility on members based on the information that they have at the
time. And so, it is a bit difficult to answer in the abstract, it would depend on the
information available.

Agenda Item 1

Page 16
Appendix A to Council:
Public Questions
2 November 2015

8.
Question asked by Bill Main-Ian, 29 The Warren, Carshalton Beeches,
to Councillor Ruth Dombey, Chair of Strategy and Resources Committee
Also given the huge public concern that surrounds Liberal Democrat interactions
around Viridor Ltd, Viridor Environmental Credits Ltd and the Holy Trinity Church,
now the misleading information to the Electoral Commission, the lack of response
from council officers and indeed from the Leader of the Council too, I would like to
know if these highlighted issues are anti democratic and whether there is a culture
of abuse of process, arrogance of acceptance of money from limited companies in
exchange for council contracts and actually a total failure of governance and
compliance when it comes to ensuing the observance of the councils constitution
to avoid breaching the terms of the Bribery Act 2011?

Reply by Councillor Ruth Dombey, Chair of Strategy and Resources
Committee
Thank you Mr Mayor. No they are not and no there isn’t.
Supplementary Question asked by Bill Main-Ian
What I would like to know, Councillor, is when are the very good and honest
Councillors whom I know and respect actually in the Liberal Democrats, going to
start holding their own leadership to account and stop leaving it to members of the
public to come out and try and hold you to account?
Reply by Councillor Dombey
I would have thought the very fact that you're here this evening, Mr Main-Ian would
be a demonstration of the fact that we are being held to account. I'm not sure
exactly what you refer to, I know there have been various discussions held at the
Standards Committee, and if you’re referring to that can I just remind you that there
are independent members of the Standards Committee, not councillors, not council
officers but independent members who stated quite clearly that there is no
evidence of council wrongdoing and to recommend an enquiry there would need to
be something more concrete than allegations. I'm quoting the independent
member, not a councillor.
Supplementary Question asked by Councillor Tim Crowley
Thank you Councillor Dombey. I was just wondering whether or not Councillor
Dombey would agree with me that there is an inequity in the way that the
Standards Committee is set up at the moment in the sense that you have
independent members that you have referred to, but those independent members
are not allowed to vote. The only people who can vote are the members of this
council on that committee, which as you know is made up politically
proportionately, which actually means there is no real independence within that
standards board whatsoever. And I was wondering whether the Leader of the
Council would maybe look at the Standards Committee again to see whether or not

Page 17

Agenda Item 1

Appendix A to Council:
Public Questions
2 November 2015
we can change that somewhat, to give more public confidence in the Standards
Committee.
Reply by Councillor Dombey
I'm not sure what the constitution arrangements are but I'm more than happy to
look at it. As you and I both know the standards Committee has an independent
chair, as well as two independent members. And if I read out again the statement
that was recorded from the independent member, I would have thought it was quite
a strong statement even if that person didn’t have a vote. He stated that the
petitions raised allegations against the council which had to be taken seriously
however no evidence of council wrongdoing had been presented and in order to
recommend an enquiry there needed to be something more concrete than
allegations, you know his words. He added that as complaints had since been
received regarding individual councillor conduct, they should be followed up
through the appropriate process rather than commission an enquiry, the second
member echoed this view. So it seems to me that the standards process is working
properly and the independent members expressed a view which was upheld by the
committee but we can certainly have a look into the idea that you’ve raised.
At this point the time for member question time concluded. The following
written responses were circulated to members following the meeting.
3.
Question asked by Roy Bennet, Flat 6, 25 Foxglove way, Hackbridge to
Councillor Jill Whitehead, Chair of the Environment and Neighbourhood
Committee
The Dispersal plumes for the Hackbridge incinerator stacks have not been
modelled with zero wind and fog conditions. In these still air conditions downdraft
can easily occur and with no wind a 95 m high stack will have almost no effect.
Can the Council confirm that the air pollution produced on these still days will meet
the latest and best European air quality indicators as would be fitting for a flagship
One Planet administration?
Written response from Councillor Jayne McCoy
The impact of a proposed development on air quality is a material planning
decision. As part of the planning application assessment for the Energy Recovery
Facility, a full environmental statement was produced to assess all impacts and the
Council commissioned an environmental compliance expert to review technical
information submitted. In addition, the Environment Agency assessed the Energy
Recovery Facilities emissions against National and European limits and was
satisfied that it would be in compliance. As a result the Environment Agency
granted the facility a permit to operate and will monitor emissions to ensure they
remain within safe limits. The Council is satisfied that the emissions from the
Energy Recovery Facility will be within safe limits.

Agenda Item 1

Page 18
Appendix A to Council:
Public Questions
2 November 2015

4.
Question asked by Roy Bennet, Flat 6, 25 Foxglove way, Hackbridge to
Councillor Jill Whitehead, Chair of the Environment and Neighbourhood
Committee
Can the Council confirm that the BioRegional Development Group has produced
an independent audit audited of the permitted incinerator plans and that the
proposal meets Sutton Council’s stated One Planet Objectives in full ? Could this
be published asap? Could all carbon footprint metrics and data used for this audit
be made public?
Written response from Councillor Jill Whitehead, Chair of the Environment
and Neighbourhood Committee
Bioregional have not produced an audit of the planned energy from waste facility
therefore there is no audit for publication.
The facility plans were reviewed through the Environment Agency's Environmental
Permitting Process to ensure compliance with all policy and legislation. Progress
against One Planet Sutton targets are reviewed annually by Bioregional as part of
the One Planet Sutton reaccreditation process. A summary of Bioregional's
findings can be found at the following link
https://www.sutton.gov.uk/downloads/file/1946/one_planet_living_sutton_annual_r
eview_20132014

9.
Question asked by Maeve Tomlinson, 83 Onslow Gardens, Wallington,
to Councillor Jayne McCoy, Chair of the Housing, Economy and Business
Committee
At the full council meeting on 13th July 2015, I asked about a comparison in waste
and ash going to Beddington landfill and the Beddington ERF and LRRE combined
and was informed that 40,000 tonnes of waste would be going to the LRRE, when
the document for the LRRE 'Delivery and Servicing Plan for Proposed Waste
Management Facility at 79-85 Beddington Lane CR0 4TH Prepared December
2013 This version: Revision B: 23rd January 2013 Prepared by Phillip Pitman
Herbert Stumpp Projects' which on page 5 states 'It is estimated that the site will
have an annual throughput of approximately 150,000 tonnes, which is
approximately 58% less than the scheme for which planning permission has been
given'. Please could you explain and provide me with documents to show where
your figures for 'The LRRE advanced thermal treatment facility is expected to have
a capacity of 40,000 tonnes of commercial and industrial waste per year.' have
come from, including the figure for the 130,000 tonnes of topsoil mentioned.

Written response from Councillor Jayne McCoy, Chair of the Housing,
Economy and Business Committee
•
When you ask questions about planning applications considered by this
council the information you will receive will be taken directly from the information

Page 19

Agenda Item 1

Appendix A to Council:
Public Questions
2 November 2015
supplied by the applicants themselves to support the application. All this
information is publically available online for you to access for yourself.
•
If you want more detailed information about the applicants’ operations then I
suggest you direct your questions to them, and make sure that you provide the
context of your question, because the answer you get is only as good as the
question you ask.
•
Your question at the last council meeting asked about throughput and
tonnage at the LRRE plant, which is 40,000 tpa according to the documents
provided by LRRE to support their most recent application to increase chimney
size to serve an Advanced Thermal Treatment Plant. Here is the link to the
relevant document:
http://5.150.92.212/fastweb/fastweb_upload/Support/Linkdocs/2014/SPPTD20146
9227D17PL110042014%20PLANNING%20STATEMENT.pdf. The information is in
paragraph 4.20.
•
This ATT plant will only process some of the waste going to the site. You
have confused the waste to be processed by the plant with the total waste
predicted by LRRE that will going onto the site, which at 150,000 tpa is significantly
less than the permission originally given.
•
The topsoil figure was provided by Viridor.

10.
Question asked by Maeve Tomlinson, 83 Onslow Gardens, Wallington,
to Councillor Jill Whitehead, Chair of the Environment and Neighbourhood
Committee
As I heard at the last South London Waste Partnership meeting on 15th
September 2015 in Croydon, Viridor are very concerned about their revenue.
During the time between when the landfill will be closed and before the Beddington
ERF will be built our waste will go elsewhere (clearly indicating there's not even a
need to have the incinerator) and so they've decided the most lucrative method for
shareholders and expensive for residents and the council is to have all our waste
sent to be burnt at the Lakeside ERF (Colnbrook Incinerator). At a time when
Sutton's Future is at stake due to funding, what are your reasons for going ahead
with the Beddington ERF and LRRE, when cancelling the contract, even with fines
would save the council money and enable Sutton to Recycle More?
Written response from Councillor Jill Whitehead, Chair of the Environment
and Neighbourhood Committee
The South London Waste Partnership residual waste treatment contract will divert
residual waste produced by households in the South London Waste Partnership
area from landfill to an Energy Recovery Facility in Beddington. This will save the
South London Waste Partnership £200m over 25 years in comparison to
continuing to send residual waste to landfill. Sutton’s portion of this saving equates
to £49m over 25 years. The money saved will help us to protect other vital frontline
services.
In comparison, to landfill, sending the Partnership’s waste to energy recovery is
expected to save 128,000 tonnes of CO2eq- each year. This will reduce the carbon
footprint of managing waste. The residual waste contract does not alter the

Agenda Item 1

Page 20
Appendix A to Council:
Public Questions
2 November 2015

Councils commitment to delivering on our One Planet Sutton Zero Waste targets.
The contract with Viridor intentionally encourages continued waste reduction and
recycling by allowing for declining tonnages of waste to be put through the facility
in future years by the Partnership.
The residual waste treatment contract will therefore help Sutton to deliver
significant financial savings, reduce our carbon footprint and Sutton to recycle
more.
LRRE does not have a contract with the South London Waste Partnership and as
such will not be treating any waste that the Partnership manages.

Page 21

Agenda Item 1
Appendix B to Council Minutes:
Councillors Questions
2 November 2015

London Borough of Sutton
Council: 2 November 2015
Questions from Councillors
Under Standing Order 8.6
1.
Question asked by Councillor Mary Burstow to Councillor Jill
Whitehead, Chair of the Environment and Neighbourhood Committee
We keep on hearing in the press that Ash Tree die back will affect the UK badly
and could be as bad as Dutch Elm disease. Is this true? Given how many Ash
Trees there are in Sutton and the number of roads which are lined with them, what
steps is Sutton Council taking to mitigate its impact?
Reply by Councillor Jill Whitehead, Chair of Environment and
Neighbourhood Committee
Thank you very much for your question on Ash Tree die back disease. It was only
a year ago that I answered a similar question when it was asked by Councillor
Graham Whitham, and the answer is the same, we haven’t yet got Ash die back in
Sutton, it hasn’t been identified in the borough to date. But if it were we do have an
action plan in place and our tree officers would liaise with the Forestry Commission
to identify the best course of action to contain the spread of the disease. We have
had a lot of media publicity on Ash die back this week, it’s been on the television,
in the newspapers and the radio. From what I can gather it’s mainly present in Kent
at the present, it’s come from Europe from places like the Netherlands and
Denmark. It’s a very slow moving disease compared to Dutch Elm disease which
we had, I think, in the 1970s. But I understand that Ash trees have more genetic
diversity than elm trees and there’s currently a lot of scientific research into which
Ash species are disease resistant to help fight that. So I hope I won’t be in the
same position in a year’s time to say that we have Ash die back but at the present
we haven’t.
Supplementary Question asked by Councillor Burstow
Should Ash tree die back ever come to the borough, do we have a budget for it?
Reply by Councillor Whitehead
We don't. As you know, our budgets are very limited and I would hope that the
government would intervene and provide a budget for all councils affected in this
way.

2.
Question asked by Councillor Richard Clifton to Councillor Jayne
McCoy, Chair of the Housing, Economy and Business Committee
Is the Lead Member for Housing, Economy and Business aware of the concerns
minuted by the Council's Planning Committee at its meeting on 15 July concerning
the decision of the Government to withdraw without replacement the Code for
Sustainable Homes and if she shares these concerns?

Agenda Item 1

Page 22

Appendix B to Council Minutes:
Councillors Questions
2 November 2015

Reply by Councillor Jayne McCoy, Chair of the Housing, Economy and
Business Committee
Thank you, thank you Councillor Clifton for your question. I am aware of the
concerns raised by the Planning Committee and I do indeed share them. This is an
example of the Conservative’s lack of commitment to carbon reduction and tackling
climate change and is now fettered those of us that were trying to meet that
challenge by no longer enabling us to introduce higher standards in our planning
policies.
Supplementary Question asked by Councillor Clifton
I’d like to thank Councillor McCoy. Can I ask her this: what concerned the planning
committee and is why I wanted to take this opportunity this evening to draw this
matter to the attention of councillors more generally, was that many planning
permissions granted by the council used to include a condition that a code for
sustainable home certificate issued by the building research establishment or an
equivalent body, must be obtained prior to the development, and the withdrawal
without replacement of the code by the conservative government, quite suddenly
with little consultation, meant we were asked to approve revised permissions.
There was a simplicity and transparency in requiring that the certificate is obtained,
submitted and approved prior to construction. My question is, can we be assured
that we will continue to pursue policies to maintain standards and push for higher
standards wherever this is appropriate?
Reply by Councillor Jayne McCoy
I think we should do everything in our power to try and push up the standards
where we can. What was particularly worrying, there was a report recently that
showed that despite all the agreed targets at the recent climate change summit,
we’re still going to fail to achieve the 2% reduction in global warming deemed
necessary to prevent cataclysmic events threatening our planet. I think this is
really, really serious. It’s dangerous to our future and I'm just disgusted that this
Conservative government have gone back on their word and all that husky hugging
at the beginning of their original term just shows what a con that was. Thank you.
Supplementary Question asked by Councillor Tony Shields
Whatever the reasons the government have come to remove the sustainable code,
I mean, I, as an aside heard it’s actually stifling new home build, but of course we
have Sutton Living now don't we. So Sutton Living can abide by the code for
sustainable homes. Just because other boroughs don't do it, there’s no reason for
you now not to do it, so we fully expect the Felnex site to be up to the code for
sustainable homes. Now’s your chance to shine, isn’t it?

Page 23

Agenda Item 1
Appendix B to Council Minutes:
Councillors Questions
2 November 2015

Reply by Councillor Jayne McCoy
Actually we’ve been previously wanting to have higher standards and now we’re
just limited, we can only do the minimum, we can’t increase that, that’s what it
says. It actually limits us, and the reason it’s been changed isn’t to release house
building because, well from the government’s policy it’s quite clear that they
haven’t got a clue how to develop house building and how to stimulate it because
all their policies seem to do exactly the opposite, including this one. The reason
that they’ve changed it is because they were lobbied by big businesses and
developers who said it’s far too difficult for us to do it.

3.
Question asked by Councillor Manuel Abellan to Councillor Jayne
McCoy, Chair of the Housing, Economy and Business Committee
What impact does the chair of the Housing, Economy & Business Committee think
the current Government's housing policy will have on the provision of affordable
homes in Sutton?
Reply by Councillor Jayne McCoy, Chair of the Housing, Economy and
Business Committee
Well I'm sorry that I'm showing up some of the horrendous government policies
that you should actually be ashamed to be associated with rather than proud of.
For example, recent policies introduced by this government are going to actually
reduce the amount of homes that are affordable for local people and I think that it’s
going to mean that social housing is set to become a thing of the past.
Some of the policies, the rent reduction policy means that councils and housing
associations are having to pull back on their plans to build more homes and I know
that because housing associations are telling us this. Then we’ve got the
requirement for councils to sell off their high value properties, well that’s going to
reduce the amount of affordable social housing available. So there’s going to be
less houses out there and there’s no actual plans to replace those properties and
it’s going to be very difficult to anyway, to try and find ways of doing it. We’re
concerned that those properties that are sold off are going to end up in private
hands under right to buy because what happens three years down the line we see
that a lot of them are actually no longer owned by the person that bought it but are
being rented out in the private sector. So I think the figure for London was about
40% of properties sold on to right to buy and now are being rented privately.
Other policies, we’ve got the no longer requiring developers to provide affordable
homes but to provide starter homes as an alternative which disincentives
developers from ever providing an element of social housing and it also lets them
off the hook to contribute to CIL and to Section 106 obligations to provide the
infrastructure that’s going to support that housing. So in summary, as I said in
answer to the previous question, the policies that have been introduced by this
government are set to worsen the housing prices, not make it better.

Agenda Item 1

Page 24

Appendix B to Council Minutes:
Councillors Questions
2 November 2015
Supplementary Question asked by Councillor Manuel Abellan
I'm not surprised to see the opposition sort of sinking in their chairs when we talk
about this issue. I was wondering if the chair could talk about what Sutton can do
to mitigate the impacts of these policies?
Reply by Councillor McCoy
Well, it’s an uphill struggle to try and mitigate these things because they keep
coming in thick and fast and as soon as we think we’ll try and stimulate housing
one way we find that it’s fettered another. But we did recognise that there’s an
inability of the government interventions to actually deliver and adequately address
that to deliver the housing that’s needed to address the housing crisis, so we did
decide to take action ourselves and that’s why we set up Sutton Living Limited, the
housing development company, and yes, I'm very proud of it because it is being
used as an example of the way that other boroughs should do things. And the key
thing to this company is it is going to increase the supply of housing across all
tenures, that’s for sale, private for rent and social housing, social housing
particularly is the thing that we think is under threat so we’re glad that we’re still
retaining the ability to provide that. And to provide the kind of housing that our
residents need rather than just providing investment properties for rich overseas
landlords. We’re also building new council houses, we’re on a programme to build
over 100 new council houses using the right to buy receipts that have been
generated before the government finds a way to stop us doing that, and we’ve also
achieved housing zone status which also helps speed up the delivery of housing in
the borough and helps ensure that we will get a decent element of affordable
housing in the private development. And that is something that I will actually give
the Conservative London Mayor credit for because I thought it was a great scheme
and noticeably he contradicts his own party by following that sort of method.
Supplementary Question asked by Councillor Nick Mattey
When we’re talking about sustainable housing, if I remember correctly the Felnex
development, which is in the London Borough of Sutton was originally mooted to
have 21% affordable housing but under this administration it’s now been reduced
to 17.5%, well I have to give the background. My answer is, if the council reduces
the amount of social housing, surely it is to blame for creating less social housing?
Reply by Councillor McCoy
Again this is one of the problems from government policy whereby they introduce
the need to prove viability for developers to deliver affordable housing.
Unfortunately they didn’t actually give a definition so developers often manage to
make the case. But in Sutton we’ve got a very good track record of arguing very
hard, of trying very hard and getting as much affordable housing as possible. And
actually on the Felnex site we’re getting 20%. We’re getting 20%, 145 of the 725
houses will be affordable.

Page 25

Agenda Item 1
Appendix B to Council Minutes:
Councillors Questions
2 November 2015

4.
Question asked by Councillor Tony Shields to Councillor Jayne
McCoy, Chair of the Housing, Economy and Business Committee
This council has long trumpeted the economic benefits of Tramlink to the borough.
Are they also aware of the lost opportunity cost created by this and previous
administrations due to their incompetence and ineptness in being able to manage
and deliver large projects with budgets given to them by successive London
Mayors? In the light of the above will the administration now allow a more inclusive
approach to ensuring that Tramlink has a chance of becoming reality?
Reply by Councillor Jayne McCoy, Chair of the Housing, Economy and
Business Committee
Right, well first of all in answer to this, it’s not just the Council that’s trumpeting the
economic benefits of Tramlink, in fact it was us listening to Sutton businesses who
have been making the case right from the start.
Well I'm just wondering if this question is actually about Councillor Crowley
suddenly deciding that he’s quite like to get involved in the Tramlink project so that
he can claim any credit if we do actually win the bid for the extension. Interestingly,
that your interest was only sparked about two years into the project after we’ve
done all the work, by working with TfL and the London Borough of Merton
providing all the financial reports and the economic feasibility evidence required to
support our bid, not to mention the borough wide consultation that showed
amazing and widespread support for bringing the tram to Sutton. So it’s obviously
a bit of a winner there, so probably safe for you to get involved in that one, which is
in sharp contrast to other projects and steering groups that we’ve invited the
opposition onto but which they only attend when they actually think they can obtain
some inside information that they can tweet about later. Or, we’ve offered them
plenty of times, briefings, we’ve almost had to beg them, Councillor Shields, to
attend briefings so that you are fully informed about some of the decisions we’re
trying to make. But, bearing in mind the track record you’ll have to forgive us for
our reluctance to actually accept your offer on this one Councillor Crowley because
we’ve been burnt before by trying to be inclusive only to see confidential
documents leaked, deliberate misinformation distributed and failure to take any
responsibility for decisions when you do sit on the boards.
Supplementary Question asked by Councillor Tony Shields
The bottom line is we clearly want and need as a borough for our residents to get
Tramlink here, of course we do. And the trouble is for the London Mayor when he’s
seen successive schemes and large ticket items, large amounts of money given to
the London Borough of Sutton to administer, and you’re the only tier 1 authority
under Lib Dem control, I have to look at what he gave you money for. Sutton High
Street, Hackbridge, Wallington High Street, blocking the viable site at Rosehill, the
Life Centre’s a disaster, anything high ticket you can’t handle. So is it any surprise
that it’s taken this long for Conservatives working behind the scenes with the
excellent Councillor Steve O’Connell to bring this forward when clearly the people
at front of house do not know what they’re talking about and can’t put a business
case together which we will expand on a lot more later about business cases won’t

Agenda Item 1

Page 26

Appendix B to Council Minutes:
Councillors Questions
2 November 2015
we? What is a business case? The one you put for the tram isn’t good enough
which is why you’ve not got any further, but we’re pushing and working hard.
Reply by Councillor McCoy
I'm not quite sure where the question was there but I can respond to the sentiment
I think. I'm not even aware that you’ve really looked at the business plan in any
detail so I don't know how you qualify to comment on that. But I do love the
opposition’s propensity to write off any project even if there’s so much as a screw
works loose. You know every project encounters problems, very little in life goes
without hitch but you can’t just write off the whole project as a failure as you love to
do. And of course, only those projects that do encounter problems are the ones
that make the news and get talked about. All those many, many projects the
council’s done that have gone smoothly have slipped quietly under the radar.
Because actually Sutton’s got a very good reputation with our partners for
delivering on projects which is why we keep winning all these bids and in regular
cases Sutton is actually quoted as best practice for many of the projects it’s
undertaken. Because of course, you’re not going to mention our Skills Match
project which is mentioned as a best practice case study, getting people into
training and apprenticeships, or our Sutton Hello project, another best practice
example, which addresses loneliness and isolation against older people. Then
we’ve got our Our Price initiative which brings together sport and employment
opportunities for people with mental health issues, I think that one’s been quoted
as well as good practice. Then we’ve got huge amounts of work supporting older
people to stay in their homes rather than being placed in residential care, which not
only delivers better outcomes for those individuals, but also delivers thousands of
pounds of saving for the council. That we’ve had our director at the time who goes
around the country talking about the work we’ve done on that as a good practice.
Successful shared services projects with other boroughs, covering IT, insurance
and Legal Services. There’s the successful refurbishment of Westcroft. We’ve got
skate parks and other public realm successes delivered by our local committees,
or if you want a really big successful project let’s talk about the Lavenders. That
was a major regeneration project that’s delivering new and more quality social
housing and community centre on the old Durand estate. And in fact our
regeneration team have a fantastic record of delivering difficult and sensitive
projects, like Elizabeth House for example. We’ve established business
improvement districts, they weren’t without issue. And we’ve got an apprenticeship
hub due to be launched on Wednesday. They’re just a few of the projects that have
been successful and don't get a mention because there aren’t any wooden animals
to moan about, or a design feature that they can complain about. But what’s clear
is that the opposition fail to put themselves forward to champion any project in the
borough because it’s far safer for you to sit there and just throw stones and criticise
rather than rolling your sleeves up and taking a risk. This is a good example, the
only time you’re willing to get involved is with Tramlink when everyone else has
done all the work, you’re guaranteed that it’s popular and there’s some success
that we ride on the back of. At least we’ve got a track record that we can be judged
on.

Page 27

Agenda Item 1
Appendix B to Council Minutes:
Councillors Questions
2 November 2015

Supplementary Question asked by Councillor Graham Whitham
Thank you Mr Mayor. As stated, the extension of Tramlink to Sutton has been an
objective for many years, during which we have had a Croydon Conservative GLA
member for 16 of them, the Conservative Mayor for the last eight. Would the Chair
please comment on my summation that in Councillor Shields’ words, this shows an
‘incompetence and ineptness’ by conservatives to manage and deliver a large
project to the benefit of Sutton residents?
Reply by Councillor McCoy
All I can say to that is can I have that written down please?

5.
Question asked by Councillor Patrick McManus to Councillor Jill
Whitehead, Chair of the Environment and Neighbourhood Committee
Why has it taken so long for this administration to consider the reintroduction of
formal crossings within the Heart of Hackbridge scheme? You were told en
masses over a year ago by residents and members on this side of the chamber
how dangerous the situation was and hence how excluding it had thus become.
Unfortunately a high profile accident has now occurred involving a child, and this
has not been the only accident at this "black spot". Why haven't you done anything
about it? Why haven’t you listened and put residents first?
Reply by Councillor Jill Whitehead, Chair of the Environment and
Neighbourhood Committee
Actually can I just say in relation to the last question that relates to this question,
Councillor Crowley did turn up in the daytime to the Hackbridge and Beddington
steering group meetings but did discuss the Hackbridge project, so he does turn up
to daytime meetings.
Thank you can I start?
The original Heart of Hackbridge scheme was completed in September 2014. The
results of an interim safety audit carried out in autumn 2014 led to changes being
made in November and December 2014. These changes included additional
signage and lighting, new ‘Road Layout Ahead’ signs, the replacement of a roundel
by a mini-roundabout and a road safety campaign.
Over the last year, the council has continued to monitor the effects of the new
junction and this has included commissioning a Road Safety Audit, a separate
Accessibility Audit and a User Survey. We also took on the views of local residents
and disability groups, such as Sutton Vision, who expressed a need for controlled
crossings.
These audits made recommendations to improve the junction, including controlled
crossings at key locations and the removal of the informal crossing closest to the
junction on London Road by the roundabout.

Agenda Item 1

Page 28

Appendix B to Council Minutes:
Councillors Questions
2 November 2015
We met representatives of Sutton Vision on site to discuss what was best for those
with impaired sight and other disabilities, we listened. And I personally got soaking
wet taking members of Sutton Vision and council officers to various sites in
Hackbridge Road and London Road because we’re so serious in looking at the
concerns they had. And indeed, options for the location and design of the
crossings have been discussed with, not only Sutton Vision, but a wide range of
organisations including the police, TfL, London Buses, the Hackbridge and
Beddington Corner Neighbourhood Group, whose idea this project was to start
with, local traders, the local school and the local cycling forum.
At each stage developments have been signposted on the Council’s Hackbridge
Scheme website, has the opposition not read these yet?
The final options which have all been safety audited include 1. And I'm pleased to
announce this, a zebra crossing on Hackbridge Road to serve the school. This will
replace the current informal crossing nearest the school. This will be implemented
this November and December 2015 and work is due to start very soon; A fully
controlled traffic lit junction between the Felnex junction and Hackbridge Station
due to be implemented as part of the Felnex redevelopment; the removal of the
informal crossing immediately south of the roundabout; and different locations for
another controlled crossing on London Road. From 16th November, that’s very
soon, the Council will be consulting widely on three options to convert informal
crossings to zebra crossings in London Road, one on the south side between the
roundabout and Felnex, and a choice of two options on the north side by the
shops. Any crossing on London Road will result in the loss of some car parking
spaces and that includes some disability parking spaces, and this is explained in
the consultation material. Plans will be available on the Council’s website and in a
number of shops in Hackbridge and we await to hear the result of the consultation
which options residents will want. Thank you.
Supplementary Question asked by Councillor Patrick McManus
That might be the imbuement theory Councillor Whitehead but people are actually
being knocked down. When someone hasn’t paid a parking ticket, they’re not faced
by theory but practice. We’re well within 12 months, people are getting hurt. You’ve
put crossings in an area of a capital city which only really is suitable for the
countryside, you should have known that in advance. What are you going to do
about that? What are you going to do about the crossing outside Sutton Station
which is also only suitable for the countryside? What are you going to do about it?
People are getting hurt.
Reply by Councillor Whitehead
We’re talking about a scheme that was approved by the GLA and as we were
reminded in the last question, the GLA is run by a Conservative Mayor so this is a
scheme that’s been approved by the GLA and TfL. And we also have to abide by
Department of Transport road guidance and can I remind you that the guidance is
produced by conservative government, so this Council has followed the guidance
but we’ve also made our wishes known that the guidance is not strong enough and

Page 29

Agenda Item 1
Appendix B to Council Minutes:
Councillors Questions
2 November 2015

we are on record in the recent House of Lords debate that we want the guidance
strengthened to improve services for those of visually impaired persons. Thank
you.
Supplementary Question asked by Councillor Neil Garratt
Thank you very much. I'm surprised at the mention of daytime meetings. There
was the memorable Members Steering Group Meeting of Hackbridge and
Beddington members which only I attended. I think there were five liberal
Democrats on that group. I have to say it was an excellently well chaired meeting.
On Hackbridge though, it was always obvious that the courtesy crossings were not
going to work. The original consultation raised doubts, it’s in the executive
summary, as soon as they were installed residents raised doubts. I stood here,
almost a year ago to the day, with a motion saying that the courtesy crossings do
not work and that we should investigate putting in formal crossings. All of you
people voted against it. You put in a wrecking amendment that basically said
everything’s fine, we’ll continue to monitor it, but all is well. Now that it’s gone
wrong, suddenly it’s the GLA’s scheme and it’s the national guidelines. I sat in
those meetings with you, and I know for a fact that you were in favour of this
scheme. So can I ask why it is that we are now pretending that the Liberal
Democrats were not in favour of this scheme and do they not think it would have
been a good idea to vote for my motion on 3rd November last year because by now
those crossings would already be in place and that child who was knocked down
probably would not have been.
Reply by Councillor Whitehead
Could I remind Councillor Garratt that the meeting at which he was the only
member was held during purdah when we had a by-election for Wallington South
and I could not be available and Councillor Jayne McCoy could not be available
because of that by-election.
Secondly, a year ago we had a ten-point plan and we went through each item of
the ten-point plan and each of those items on the ten-point plan has been initiated
during the year. We have to follow the guidance provided by this government. We
have to follow the road traffic acts and that’s exactly what we’ve done. And on
courtesy crossings we’ve received information initially from Lady Cramer which
was during the coalition that her department was looking at courtesy crossings and
they didn’t understand at that point why some seemed to work and perhaps others
didn’t. And we hold our hands up that we weren’t quite sure whether ours were
going to work or not but we had to test it through and see. So that’s why we
commissioned a road safety audit, an accessibility audit and a user survey. And we
went through all those procedures and the advice was that yes we do need to put
some crossings back in, some controlled crossings. But we had to do all that test
first to check this and we’ve now received information that further examination is
happening in regard to courtesy crossings nationwide and we await that with
interest.

Agenda Item 1

Page 30

Appendix B to Council Minutes:
Councillors Questions
2 November 2015
At this point the time for member question time concluded. The following
written responses were circulated to members following the meeting.
6.
Question asked by Councillor Jane Pascoe to Councillor Wendy
Mathys, Chair of the Children, Family and Education Committee
Could you give me the comparative site sizes for the 2 Form Entry (420 pupil)
primary school planned to be built on the Metropolitan Open Land in Hackbridge,
and the 8 or 10 Form Entry (approximately 2000) Secondary school planned for
the 1.6 hectares of Land owned by LBS on the Sutton Hospital Site?
Reply by Councillor Wendy Mathys, Chair of the Children, Family and
Education Committee

The approximate size of the site that has been identified to expand Hackbridge
primary school on to is 1.675 ha inclusive of playing field space. The land that is
currently in the Council’s ownership for the development of a secondary school at
the Sutton Hospital site is approximately 1.6 ha. Subject to discussions with the
EFA, the secondary school is likely to be no larger than 6FE + 6th form but this will
not include on-site playing field space. It may be possible for the school to secure
further land or share facilities with the wider London Cancer Hub proposals should
these come to fruition.
7. Question asked by Councillor David Hicks to Councillor Jayne McCoy,
Chair of the Housing, Economy and Business Committee
The Council approved the planning application for the South Sutton Medical Centre
against its own core planning policies and massive public objection. The residents
of Belmont are aware that the Sutton Hospital site will eventually be developed, but
wish the development to be complementary to the area. The Council hasn't
listened to or taken notice of Belmont public opinion in the past. So how can local
residents have any faith in the Council listening this time about a school on the
site?
Reply by Councillor Jayne McCoy, Chair of the Housing, Economy and
Business Committee
The decision to grant planning permission to develop the former Henderson
Hospital Site was in accordance with the Council’s Development Plan and is legally
sound. If Cllr Hicks wishes to suggest otherwise then he should follow the correct
legal channels to test his claims or withdraw his statement.
I would remind Cllr Hicks that simply disliking an application does not count as
sound planning grounds on which officers can refuse an application. I am aware
that due consideration was given to the valid representations received.

Page 31

Agenda Item 1
Appendix B to Council Minutes:
Councillors Questions
2 November 2015

The decision on this planning application was taken by the former Development
Control Committee (DCC) and having regard to all material planning
considerations including the representations received. This decision is sound in
law and has not been challenged in the Courts. The decision was taken after two
public meetings and several rounds of consultation including detailed discussions
post DCC in relation to a specific clause in the legal agreement which included
Belmont ward members and the Belmont and South Cheam Residents
Association.
The conversations around the future use of the Sutton Hospital Site have already
begun and the London Cancer Hub (LCH) Partnership has held two community
engagement events. These events have been the first step in a comprehensive
engagement and consultation programme. The LCH Partnership will be formally
consulting on the proposals for the LCH in the New Year concurrently, with the
Issues and Options document which forms part of the review of our Local Plan.
The current Development Plan (LDF) allocates the site for residential and health
use and the site will be included as an allocated site within the Issues and Options
document which we will be consulting on New Year. That document will include
several possible options for developing the site and all of these include a school.
It is important to recognise that there will be more than one opportunity for the
residents to make representations on the future of the Sutton Hospital Site; the
Plan making stage and, should an application come forward for a school on the
site, at the planning application stage. The discussion around the Plan making
stage is particularly important as the Plan that the Council proposes for submission
will be subject to the scrutiny of an Independent Examiner appointed by the
Planning Inspectorate and there will be a thorough engagement around the issues
concerning this and other key sites as part of the Local Plan Review.
8. Question asked by Councillor Nick Mattey to Councillor Ruth Dombey,
Chair of Strategy and Resources Committee
According to Mr John Drage Viridor chief executive Mr Colin Drummond
entertained him with such lavish hospitality in 2012 that he felt it necessary to
record this matter. I have asked Mr Drage if during this meeting that rekindled their
long-standing friendship if Mr Drage had discussed the parlous state of repair of
the Holy Trinity Church a grade 2 listed church , within 10 miles of Beddington
landfill that could qualify for a Viridor Environmental credit donation . I have also
asked if Mr Drage mentioned to Mr Drummond that and his wife both financially
supported Mr Tom Brake a local MP who was opposed to large incinerators or
indeed the fact Councillor Drage was a member of the South London Waste
Partnership that were considering Viridor as the incinerator supplier. Mr Drage has
so far refused to answer these questions. Sutton Council must ensure that these
unanswered questions are put to Mr Drummond and Mr Drage will it take this
seriously and investigate this?

Agenda Item 1

Page 32

Appendix B to Council Minutes:
Councillors Questions
2 November 2015
Reply by Councillor Ruth Dombey, Chair of Strategy and Resources
Committee
No, the Council will not investigate this matter further. As set out in the report and
recommendations agreed by the Standards Committee on 16 September, the
Council does not have powers to compel external individuals or organisations to
answer its questions.
For clarity, members are required to record any hospitality received over the value
of £35 which hardly counts as "lavish hospitality".
The event referred to took place in 2012 which was after the SLWP had awarded
the contract for the ERF to Viridor in 2011 so the premise of the question is
incorrect.
Although the Standards Committee Independent members are non-voting, their
(independent) views are recorded in the draft minutes for the 16 September
meeting:
“Mr Evans stated that the petitions raised allegations against the Council which
had to be taken seriously; however, no evidence of Council wrong doing had been
presented and in order to recommend an enquiry there needed to be something
more concrete than allegations."
9.
Question asked by Councillor Holly Ramsey to Councillor Wendy
Mathys, Chair of the Children, Family and Education Committee and
Councillor Jill Whitehead, Chair of the Environment and Neighbourhood
Committee
About 2/3 of school visits to the Life Centre are from outside the borough, and 1/3
are from independent schools. We subsidise this to the tune of nearly £0.5 million
every year. Meanwhile the Lib Dems plan to cut our youth services to the bare
legal minimum. Those are the spending priorities of this Lib Dem council – does
Cllr Mathys think they’re the correct priorities?
Reply by Councillor Wendy Mathys, Chair of the Children, Family and
Education Committee and Councillor Jill Whitehead, Chair of the
Environment and Neighbourhood Committee
The total net cost of operating the Sutton Life Centre is £463,496. This includes
the costs of operating the Library, the meeting and conferencing facilities, the
sports facilities, the media lab and the school tours.
In addition there are many services and projects provided in or by the Life Centre
that directly benefit Sutton’s young people including:



Crystal Palace Football Club -Foundation Kicks programme engaging
between 15-30 young people on a weekly basis in sports activities.
Barclays premier league works – a 16 week employability programme
offering accredited training

Page 33

Agenda Item 1
Appendix B to Council Minutes:
Councillors Questions
2 November 2015






Citizenship Media Club for young people to learn skills and express
themselves through film, music and photography
Time Out Youth Club sessions engaging over 50 young people a week in
education and a creative programme
Presto Performing Arts engaging young people in dance and drama
My Life, My Future – an 18 month programme for young people aged
between 10-18 who are either in care or care leavers

Since opening in September 2010 over half a million users (554,760) have visited
the Life Centre with a further 23,253 young people having attended school tours
through 492 organised school visits.
Of the 42 primary and 14 secondary schools in Sutton, over the last two years 20
primary and 6 secondary schools have visited for a tour. Just under half of all
Sutton schools are customers of and have visited the Life Centre.
Every pupil visiting the Life Centre for a school tour from outside Sutton pays
between £7.50 and £9.00 for their place.
It is not therefore correct to assert that the Council subsidises school tours to the
tune of half a million pounds.
As a result of the significant central government cuts, we have no other choice but
to consider every single service we offer across the council. This includes the
youth service. We will take very seriously what young people and our staff will say
about the youth service and make the best decision that we can within the current
financial constraints all local authorities face.

10.
Question asked by Councillor Mary Burstow to Councillor Colin
Stears, Chair of the Adult Social Services and Health Committee
Why was the Memory Lane Cafe closed? It was held twice a month at St John’s
Church in North Down road, Belmont. This is a vital support service used by
people with dementia and their carers
Reply by Councillor Colin Stears, Chair of the Adult Social Services and
Health Committee
Sutton Alzheimer's Society decided to temporarily close the cafe until November to
enable it to reopen in a different format. From November the cafe will provide
information, guest speakers, refreshments, peer support and other meaningful
activities for people with dementia that will help people living with dementia keep
essential skills for as long as possible.
This model is used nationally by the Alzheimer's society with very positive
outcomes.

Agenda Item 1

Page 34

Appendix B to Council Minutes:
Councillors Questions
2 November 2015
11. Question asked by Councillor Nick Mattey to Councillor Ruth Dombey,
Chair of Strategy and Resources Committee
At the final planning meeting for the Viridor Incinerator at which Mr Robert Ryan a
Viridor Executive was present. Councillor Mary Burstow asked Mr Robert Ryan
that if she did not vote for the Viridor incinerator would Sutton Council lose the £1.6
million, which was part of a 106 agreement. He said this was indeed the case. We
have a Viridor executive telling an elected member that the council will not get
money due to an agreement regarding landfill unless they vote for an Incinerator.
This if true is wrong, as landfill and incinerators are two distinct and separate
entities. Councillor Burstow worried that the council would lose this money may
have used Mr Ryan's explanation as a justification for voting for incinerator. This is
completely unacceptable and has resulted in in the perversion of the planning
process. Viridor have been allowed to gain access to councillors and the result is
the planning process has been perverted to build an incinerator. is the council
going to take action and seek the help of the police to remedy a planning process
tainted with corruption and seek an injunction to halt any more building work by
Viridor before this scandal is resolved?
Reply by Councillor Ruth Dombey, Chair of Strategy and Resources
Committee
No. The planning process is not tainted by corruption. It has been fully tested
during two hearings in the courts through a Judicial Review which was rejected
and the Council was found to have acted properly. There is no reason in law for
the decision not to be implemented.
Cllr Mattey has supplied no evidence of his allegations. As the independent
member of the Standards Committee explained on 16th September, "no evidence
of Council wrong doing had been presented and in order to recommend an enquiry
there needed to be something more concrete than allegations."
12.
Question asked by Councillor Mary Burstow to Councillor Tony
Shields, Chair of the Sutton South, Cheam and Belmont Local Committee
Please can I have a breakdown of Public Realm Spend by Ward, for South Sutton,
Belmont and Cheam Ward over the last 3 Financial years (2011/12, 2012/13,
2013/14)?
Reply by Councillor Tony Shields, Chair of the Sutton South, Cheam and
Belmont Local Committee
The table below shows the breakdown for Public Realm capital and revenue spend
(excluding TfL spend) for the Sutton South, Belmont and Cheam wards over the
past 4 years.

Page 35

Agenda Item 1
Appendix B to Council Minutes:
Councillors Questions
2 November 2015

Sutton South
2011-12
2012-13
2013-14
2014-15
Total

Cheam

Belmont

£47,522
£17,048
£23,578
£70,273
£158,421

£22,203
£13,392
£29,257
£45,035
£109,887

£31,539
£8,330
£20,516
£18,225
£78,610

Please see the tables below which identify the top 3 highest spend public realm
schemes for each financial year (excluding TfL funded schemes).
2011-12

Sutton South

Actual
Spend

Actual
Spend

Cheam

Cuddington
Sutton court
park nature
estate ball court £29,375 reserve fencing
Eaton Road
parking review
£12,748 Tree planting
Devonshire Ave
natural area play
BMX track in
equipment
£6,970 Nonsuch park
£49,093

Belmont

Actual
Spend

Shanklin playground
£8,280 improvements
£25,846
£5,173 Tree planting
Improvements to
Knockholt Close &
£5,750 Belmont Pastures
£19,203

£5,173

£520
£31,539

2012-13

Sutton South
Devonshire
avenue nature
reserve

Benches across
all wards

Sutton Estate
Ball court

Actual
Spend

Cheam

Cheam
open air
£15,721 gym
Cheam
lodge
internal
£222 works
Cycle
stands
Cheam
£105 station

Actual
Spend

Belmont

Actual
Spend

Improvements to
Knockholt Close and
£4,881 Belmont Pastures

£5,825

Belmont memorial
gardens bench and
£2,281 hedge

£1,283

£2,000 Benches all wards

£222

Page 36

Agenda Item 1

Appendix B to Council Minutes:
Councillors Questions
2 November 2015
£16,048

£9,162

£7,330

2013-14

Sutton South

Actual
Spend

Cheam

Actual
Spend

Belmont

Actual
Spend

Christmas
Lights across
Christmas Lights
Christmas Lights
all wards
£12,000 across all wards £12,000 across all wards
£12,000
Parking
Controls in
Cheam Park
Improvements to
Eastleigh
Pavilion
Knockholt Close and
Close
£6,913 Improvements
£9,020 Belmont pastures
£3,900
Hanging
baskets
Hanging baskets
Hanging baskets
display across
display across all
display across all
all wards
£2,633 wards
£2,633 wards
£2,633
£21,546

£23,653

£18,533

2014-15
Actual
Sutton South Spend

Cheam

Actual
Spend

Belmont

Overton
Belmont
Playground
Cheam Park Pavilion
allotment
Extension
£56,922 Improvements
£14,391 improvements
Festive Lights
Cheam Park
across all
Playground musical
Festive Lights
wards
£6,672 instrument/trampoline
£7,252 across all wards
Hanging
baskets
Hanging
display across
Festive Lights across all
baskets display
all wards
£2,353 wards
£6,672 across all wards
£65,947

£28,315

Actual
Spend

£5,050

£6,672

£2,353
£14,075

Note: amend the £65 .947 from Sutton south column to read £9.025 and add the
£56.922 to Belmont Overton Park amount total to read £70,997.

Page 37

Agenda Item 1

Appendix C
Questions During Debates
2 November 2015

LONDON BOROUGH OF SUTTON
COUNCIL MEETING: 2 NOVEMBER 2015
QUESTIONS: STANDING ORDER 8.1
QUESTIONS DURING DEBATES

1.
Question asked by Councillor Tim Crowley to Councillor Simon
Wales, Lead for Finance and Voluntary Sector
Can the lead member confirm whether or not a Memorandum of
Understanding has been signed between the council and Ecolocal Ltd or any
of its partners in relation to the Sale of the Lodge in Carshalton?

Reply by Councillor Simon Wales, Lead for Finance and Voluntary
Sector
Thank you Mr Mayor. I can confirm that the Council has not signed a
Memorandum of Understanding with Ecolocal or any of its partners for the
proposed redevelopment of the Lodge.
The Council has negotiated, however, a set of Heads of Terms for a lease
between the Council and Ecolocal for the proposed redevelopment. These
were presented to the Strategy & Resources Committee on 28th September
this year for agreement. Approval at this Council meeting of the requisitioned
Strategy and Resources report will confirm the Heads of Terms as the only
agreement so far between the Council and Ecolocal for the project.
Supplementary question asked by Councillor Tim Crowley
I thank Councillor Wales for his response. Is the Councillor confident that if
any FOI request were to be put in about discussions between Ecolocal and
the Council that there would be no record of any discussion about having to
recompense Ecolocal for they work that they’d done up to this point if this
scheme was then discounted?
Reply by Councillor Wales
Thank you Councillor Crowley. Yes, but your question was about signing
agreements, not about discussions and the council will not be in a position of
recompensing Ecolocal, no.
Supplementary question asked by Councillor Neil Garratt
Councillor Wales just said that there is no further agreement at this stage, it’s
just a Heads of Terms. Can I clarify whether once the Heads of Terms are
agreed, whether there will be a further decision for members or whether it now

Agenda Item 1

Page 38

Appendix C
Questions During Debates
2 November 2015

would be a delegated officer decision to complete the sale, or lease I should
say?
Reply by Councillor Wales
The Heads of Terms sets out the framework for the lease to be negotiated
which can be done under delegated powers by the Director of Resources.
However, if the lease is too far, or if the negotiations take it too far away from
the Heads of Terms agreement then the director will bring that back for
members for a decision. If it’s close enough to the Heads of Terms, that the
director is confident he can take it under delegated powers, he will. If it strays
too far from that then it will come back for members.

2.
Question asked by Councillor Neil Garratt to Councillor Simon
Wales, Lead for Finance and Voluntary Sector
When the Strategy & Resources Committee voted to agree heads of terms
with EcoLocal for the sale of The Lodge, what evidence did the administration
have that EcoLocal has 1) the financial strength to handle the risk of such a
large project in an important historic building, 2) the expertise to tackle a
renovation of a major historic building, and 3) the experience of delivering
similar projects?
Reply by Councillor Simon Wales, Lead for Finance and Voluntary
Sector
Ecolocal have advised that they are planning to use a combination of their
own resources and a bank loan to fund the proposed works at the Lodge. The
business case prepared by Ecolocal demonstrated how much the project
would cost and how it would be funded. It also showed how the bank loan
would be repaid. The Council has been advised of discussions Ecolocal has
held with potential funders and has no cause to doubt their ability to raise the
necessary funds. Having said this, the Council will adopt the stance it always
takes in such developments to ensure that its interests in the building are
protected.
And these include a) not entering into the proposed 125-year lease until the
works to provide the residential units and community spaces are completed
and b) entering into a building agreement with Ecolocal when they are given
access to the building that is contingent on the loan funding being in place.
The expertise Ecolocal need to undertake the redevelopment of the Lodge is
to be a competent and intelligent Client. Over the last two years that Ecolocal
have spent in developing their proposals for the Lodge, the Council has been
impressed by the professional approach that they have taken. They have
commissioned and used all the necessary experts for building design, finance
and legal advice. They have undertaken detailed surveys of the building and

Page 39

Agenda Item 1

Appendix C
Questions During Debates
2 November 2015

carried out all the necessary due diligence that an informed Client should
carry out. They have carried out the necessary market research and have
produced a credible business plan. There is therefore every reason to believe
that Ecolocal is a competent client and should be able to deliver the project as
planned.
Supplementary question asked by Councillor Neil Garratt
I mean that sounds like a bit of a sales pitch for Ecolocal if I'm honest. I mean,
just to clarify, they haven’t ever done anything like this before, is that correct?
By this, I mean any development or historic building development.
Reply by Councillor Wales
To the best of my knowledge that they haven’t, but as I said they do not need
to have done so in the past to be able to do so now.

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 41

Agenda Item 6a

Council Meeting 18 January 2016
Motions
Motion 1 Impact of central government cuts on local communities
Proposed by Cllr Ruth Dombey. Seconder TBA
Council notes:


That £43m of cuts have been imposed on the borough by central government
since 2010 and a further £31m is now required by 2019, equivalent to 50% of
the Council's annual revenue budget;



That central government has delegated additional responsibilities to councils,
expecting them to deliver with less funding or with funding cut altogether;



The concern that these further draconian cuts in funding by the Conservative
Government will seriously restrict its ability to provide adequate protection for
the most vulnerable people in the borough and will still require cutting some
front line services to the bare minimum or stopping them altogether;



The expectation by government that councils will need to significantly raise
council tax to maintain basic services.

Council calls on the government to cease the hypocrisy of advocating localism whilst
imposing additional red tape and unsustainable restrictions on local authorities'
spending decisions and instead engage with local government to offer true
devolution of powers and responsibilities so that they can continue to respond to
local people’s needs and expectations.

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 43

Agenda Item 6b

Council 18 January 2016
Committee Recommendations
Recommendation of the Standards Committee held on 16 September 2015 and
Strategy and Resources Committee held on 14 December 2015

4. Process for dealing with Standards Allegations under the Localism Act 2011
The Monitoring Officer introduced the report which proposed a revised process for
dealing with code of conduct complaints. Members discussed the use of the form as
a process for ensuring that complaints were valid and whether removing the form
would open the process to more vexatious or frivolous complaints.

Resolved
1. That Council is recommended, via Strategy and Resources Committee, to
amend the standards committee complaints process.
2. That the Monitoring Officer is requested to make contact with complainants
over the past 12 months who did not choose to complete the Standards
complaints form.
(Note: Only recommendation 1. is required to be considered by Council)

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 45

Agenda Item 6c

Council 18 January 2016
Committee Recommendations
Recommendation of the Audit Committee held on 10 December 2015
30. Treasury Management Quarterly report Quarter 2
The report was presented by the Head of Financial Strategy and Planning, Lyndsey
Gamble, who welcomed comments and questions.
Councillor David Hicks asked when the two recently repaid loans were originally
taken out, and Lyndsey Gamble undertook to consult the load schedule and report
back.
At the request of Councillor Richard Broadbent, Lyndsey Gamble gave a more
detailed explanation of the impact on the Capital Financing Requirement of the
appropriation of land and buildings from the general fund to the HRA and vice versa.
She confirmed that the market value of land and buildings will be assessed by an
appropriate surveyor.
RESOLVED: That the Audit Committee
1. Notes the Treasury Management activity taken during the first six months of
the year.
2. Adopts the report as the mid-year Treasury Review and recommends it to Full
Council.

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 47

Agenda Item 7

Report to:

Council

Report title:

Requisition Report

Report from:

Jessica Crowe, Monitoring Officer

Ward/Areas affected:

Borough wide

Chair of Committee/Lead
Member:
Author(s)/Contact
Number(s):
Corporate Plan
Priorities:

The Mayor, Cllr Muhammad Sadiq

Open/Exempt:

Open

Signed:

Date:

18 January 2016

Alexa Coates, Committee and Management Services Support
Manager, 020 8770 5094
● An Open Council
● A Fair Council

Date:

07 January 2016

1.

Summary

1.1

In accordance with committee procedure rule 23.4 Requisitions, Full Council is asked to
consider a requisition relating to decisions made at a meeting of the Children, Family and
Education Committee held on 17 December 2015.

2.

Recommendations

2.1

To consider the requisition request relating to Item 5 School Places Update, recommendations
2.4 and 2.5 considered by the Children, Family and Education Committee held on 17 December
2015.

3.

Background

3.1

The requisition relates to the recommended approach to securing the provision of new
secondary school places for the borough. The text of the requisition is set out below:
“On 2.4: there is a significant risk of the new secondary school not being ready for 2018. This
recommendation overturns the approach set out by Cllr Mathys in November 2014 that both
Rose Hill and Sutton Hospital sites would be pursued and the first to be ready would be the
site for the initial school. Neither site is yet ready, so both sites should continue to be pursued
in order to manage prudently the risk of one site encountering problems. Only the Rose Hill

Page 48

Agenda Item 7

site has so far been identified as being suitable by the EFA. We are seeking to reinstate the
twin-track approach of November 2014.
On 2.5 we are seeking clarification of the risks, uncertainties and the details of the proposed
plan for LBS to pursue planning permission on the school site itself, rather than following the
normal process of allowing the school provider to do this. We are concerned that a risky plan
is being pursued for political reasons and not because it is the best plan to provide for the
future education of Sutton’s children.”

4.

Issues

4.1

The process for considering requisitions is for the relevant chair to move the adoption of the
minute of the decisions that have been requisitioned, which all members thus have an
opportunity to debate and vote upon. The resolutions members are considering are: item 5
resolutions d) and e) as set out at Appendix A to this report.

5.

Options Considered

5.1

Full Council can agree the resolutions made by the Children, Family and Education Committee
Committee or take the action requested by the Councillors requisitioning the decision. For
clarification, the Council have not been told by the EFA that the Sutton Hospital site is
unsuitable for a secondary school only that they shared GLT's concerns that it was not
sufficiently big for an 8FE secondary school including 6th form. Detailed information relating to
options and reasons for the recommendations are set out in the report considered by the
committee attached at Appendix B.

6.

Impacts and Implications
Financial

6.1

The financial implications of this decision are set out in the original report which is attached at
Appendix B.
Legal

6.2

The legal implications of this decision are set out in the original report which is attached at
Appendix B.

7.

Appendices and Background Documents
Appendix letter

Title

A

Draft resolutions Item 5, Children Family and Education Committee 17
December 2015

B

Report School Places Update considered by the Children Family and

Page 49

Agenda Item 7

Education Committee 17 December 2015 (circulated separately to
Councillors and available at www.sutton.gov.uk)

Background documents
None

Audit Trail
Version

Final

Date: 05 January 2016

Consultation with other officers
Finance

No

N/A

Legal

No

N/A

People Directorate

Yes

Kieran Holliday
Head of Pupil Based
Commissioning

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 51

Agenda Item 7
Appendix A

Council 18 January 2016
Requisition
Resolutions of the Children, Family and Education Committee held on 17
December 2015
61. School Places Update
The Committee considered a report that provided updates on the delivery of school
places in Sutton required due to demographic increase in the Borough and was
included the following items:
Update on primary and secondary projections for the Borough
 Determination of statutory notices on the expansion of Manor Park Primary
School
 The latest position with respect to proposed expansion of Hackbridge Primary
School
 Update on Bandon Hill Primary expansion project and the requirement to
authorise remaining funding for deferred works.
 Update on the delivery of a new secondary school in Sutton
 Update on the process by which sites for future school provision will be identified
for future educational provision.
 Latest capital position with respect to basic need funding
The Chair announced that discussions on this report would take place in two parts,
firstly on primary schools and then the secondary school. On the primary school
section Bandon Hill Primary School would take place at the end to allow for
Councillor Garratt to leave the room after declaring an interest.
The Head of Pupil Based Commissioning responded to Member questions including
provision of nursery places, unfilled places, improvements to Manor Park play space
and the phasing of Hackbridge Primary School.
In response to Member questions on the Secondary School provision if was reported
that:
 The Education Funding Authority (EFA) had not set a budget for the scheme and
any reimbursement would only take place if new free school provision was
approved and the Sutton Hospital site agreed as the preferred site.
 That options b and c would mean that the Council would meet the capital costs of
the school.
 That the £950k was from the Basic Need Grant and that the £8.8m for purchase
of the hospital site was separate money to the £25m for school provision.
Councillor Garratt raised several concerns about the process for the hospital site that
in his opinion/view:
 The process being adopted was not the normal route.
 That paragraph 7.9 of the report highlighted the risk to be taken.
 That the unorthodox approach was being taken because the schedule was so
far behind.

Agenda Item 7

Page 52
Appendix A



That both identified sites for the new school should be progressed together as
two schools would be needed.
 That the issue of future school sites should not be dealt with under the Local
Plan which would be considered by another Committee as they would be
concerned with other matters.
 That the Council would be tying its hands with the Belmont site when it was
clear that both sites would need to be built on.
The Chair explained that the Local Plan was the usual way of finding sites and that it
would come back to this Committee for debate and that it was preferable not to build
on Metropolitan Open Land whilst there was brownfield sites available.
The Head of Pupil Based Commissioning and Strategic Director, People Services
responded to further detailed questions from Members. Due to not knowing of any
known examples the Head of Pupil Based Commissioning undertook to respond to
Members queries, outside of the meeting, whether the Council would have to fund an
extension of a free school if they applied.
RESOLVED:
a) The primary and secondary projections and the commentary associated with
their use was noted.
b) The proposed expansion of Manor Park Primary school to a three form entry
school from 2017 was approved.
c) To tender the Hackbridge primary school expansion after the resolution of the
reserved matters application for the Felnex development.
d) To endorse the Sutton Hospital site as the first site for new secondary school
provision from 2018.
e) That an initial sum of £950k to develop a planning application for a new
secondary school on the Sutton Hospital site (inclusive of all surveys,
professional fees etc) was approved.
f) That expenditure of £480K already set aside within capital estimates for
deferred works to complete the expansion of Bandon Hill Primary was
authorised.
g) That the issue of future school sites in the Borough will be addressed through
the ‘Issues and Options’ consultation of the Local Plan in the new year was
noted.

(Note: only resolutions d) and e) are subject to the requisition and consideration by
Council)

